w

O 0O

m

AGENDA
x Wytheville Town Council
Monday, October 13, 2003
7:00 P.M.
Wytheville Municipal Building

WYTREvILLE 150 East Monroe Street

Wytheville, Virginia 24382

CALL TO ORDER—MAYOR TRENTON G. CREWE, JR.

ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM—MAYOR TRENTON G. CREWE, JR.

INVOCATION—VICE-MAYOR JACQUELINE K. KING

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE—COUNCILMAN WILLIAM B. WEISIGER

CONSENT AGENDA

1. Minutes of the regular meeting of September 22, 2003

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of Carroll County, the Board of
Supervisors of Wythe County and the Council of the Town of Wytheville
creating a regional water authority and providing for the articles of
incorporation of the authority

CITIZENS’ PERIOD

1. Mr. Alan Reed and Mrs. Alison Reed of Bristol, England
2. Others

OLD BUSINESS—TOWN MANAGER C. WAYNE SUTHERLAND, JR.
COMMITTEE REPORTS
1. Budget and Finance
a. Setting public hearing to amend the budget for the appropriation of
funds to perform site excavation on the Community Center site,
construction/renovations to the Visitor's Center, and an amendment to

the Police Department line item to include a donation from Wal-Mart

b. Revision to closing time of the Community Center for New Year’s Eve



2. Public Works

a. Recommendation to participate in a Crossroads Regional Industrial
Facility Authority Project

b. Consideration of request by the Planning Commission for contract
with cellular tower technical consultants

J. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS
1. Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of Carroll County, the Board of
Supervisors of Wythe County and the Council of the Town of Wytheville
creating a regional water authority and providing for the articles of
incorporation of the authority

K. OTHER BUSINESS

1. A-95 Review of Wythe County for Progress Park Lot 11 Infrastructure

L. ADJOURNMENT

G:\COUNCIL\COUNCIL AGENDAS\2003\101303.doc



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA

INFORMATION

Meeting Date:

Monday, October 13, 2003

Item Name:

Public Hearing

Item Number:

F-1

Subject:

Regional Water Authority

SUMMARY:

A public hearing has been scheduled to consider a resolution of the Board of
Supervisors of Carroll County, the Board of Supervisors of Wythe County and the
Council of the Town of Wytheville creating a regional water authority and providing for
the articles of incorporation of the authority. As you are aware, Carroll County
conducted their public hearing on October 8 and Wythe County will conduct their
hearing on October 14, 2003. Mr. Elvan Peed will be in attendance to answer any

questions the Council or the public may have regarding the design and associated

costs. Action on this matter will be during the regular meeting.



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA INFORMATION

Meeting Date: Monday, October 13, 2003

Item Name: Committee Reports

Item Number: -1

Subject: Budget and Finance Committee Report
SUMMARY:

The Budget and Finance Committee will report on the following matters:

a. Setting public hearing to amend the budget for the appropriation of funds
to perform site excavation on the Community Center site,
construction/renovations to the Visitor's Center, and an amendment to the
Police Department line item to include a donation from Wal-Mart

b. Revision to closing time of the Community Center for New Year’s Eve



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA INFORMATION

Meeting Date: Monday, October 13, 2003

Item Name: Committee Reports

Item Number: -2

Subject: Public Works Committee Report
SUMMARY:

The Public Works Committee will report on the following matters:

a. Recommendation to participate in a Crossroads Regional Industrial Facility
Authority Project

b. Consideration of request by the Planning Commission for contract with cellular
tower technical consultants



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2003, AT 7:00 P.M.

Members present: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B.
Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett

Members absent: None

Others present: Assistant Town Manager Stephen A. Moore, Town Clerk Sharon P.
Hackler, Town Attorney Robert P. Kaase, Patrol Officer John Humphrey,
Stephanie Porter-Nichols with Wytheville Enterprise, Bill Frost, Norma
Armbrister, David W. Jones, Jen Wu, Mike Webb, Tray Lawson, Herman
Largen, Kim Ridpath, Bill Smith, Danny L. Neel, Kenneth D. Rich

RE: CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM, INVOCATION, PLEDGE

Mayor Crewe called the meeting to order and established that a quorum of Council members
was present. The invocation was given by Councilman Crockett followed by the Pledge of
Allegiance led by Councilman Weisiger.

RE: CONSENT AGENDA

Mayor Crewe presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of
September 8, 2003; the request of the Wytheville Volunteer Fire Department to conduct their
annual Fire Prevention Parade on October 11, 2003; the request of the Wytheville-Wythe-Bland
Chamber of Commerce to conduct their annual Christmas parade on December 6, 2003, and to
close the municipal parking lot; the request of the Family Resource Center, Inc. for waiver of fee
for use of Withers Park for a candlelight vigil on October 16, 2003; the request of the Wythe
County Breast Cancer Coalition for waiver of fee for use of the Community Center on October
23, 2003, for an educational session; and the request of the Southwest Virginia Solid Waste
Management Association for waiver of fee for use of the Community Center on December 10,
2003, for a meeting. He advised that he would ask for someone to make a motion to approve
the consent agenda consisting of five of the above items, and noted that the Council can
consider the request of the Family Resource Center for waiver of fee for use of Withers Park for
a candlelight vigil on October 16, 2003, separately. Mayor Crewe noted that all of these
requests comply with the guidelines. Mayor Crewe explained that Town staff received a
telephone call today regarding the request of the Family Resource Center, Inc. for waiver of fee
for use of Withers Park for a candlelight vigil on October 16, 2003. He pointed out that this
request did comply with the stipulations in the regulations, however, today, the Family Resource
Center requested that the date be changed to October 2, rather than October 16. Mayor Crewe
noted that this change in the date makes the request no longer comply with the Town’s
regulations because it requires a 30-day advance notice. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor
King and seconded by Councilman Weisiger to approve the consent agenda consisting of the
minutes of the regular meeting of September 8, 2003, the request of the Wytheville Volunteer
Fire Department to conduct their annual Fire Prevention Parade on October 11, 2003; the
request of the Wytheville-Wythe-Bland Chamber of Commerce to conduct their annual
Christmas parade on December 6, 2003, and to close the municipal parking lot; the request of
the Wythe County Breast Cancer Coalition for waiver of fee for use of the Community Center on
October 23, 2003, for an educational session; and the request of the Southwest Virginia Solid
Waste Management Association for waiver of fee for use of the Community Center on
December 10, 2003, for a meeting. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the
motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there
being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William
B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None.

Mayor Crewe inquired regarding the pleasure of the Council in considering the request of the
Family Resource Center, Inc. for waiver of fee for use of Withers Park for a candlelight vigil on
October 16, 2003. He noted that the Council has the letter before them, but explained that the
Town’s regulations require a 30-day advance notice, and by them changing the date from
October 16 to October 2, the Family Resource Center no longer falls within the guidelines.
Mayor Crewe indicated that the Council can either waive the criteria or ask the Family Resource
Center to maintain their original date. He stated the request was approved by the Recreation
Department and by Director of Parks and Recreation Showalter with the October 16 date, which
met the 30-day advance notice, but he explained that changing the date to October 2 means
that this request no longer complies with the criteria the Town uses for waiver of fees.
Councilman Weisiger noted that he thinks the Town should ask them to keep their original date
if they want the waiver of fees. Vice-Mayor King inquired as to the reason for the Family
Resource Center changing the date. Mayor Crewe answered that he did not think they stated



the reason why, but only that they would like to change the date. A motion was made by
Councilman Weisiger to approve the request of the Family Resource Center, Inc. for waiver of
fee for use of Withers Park for a candlelight vigil on October 16, 2003, but the fee would not be
waived if they hold their activity on the amended date of October 2. The motion was seconded
by Councilman Crockett. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion to
approve the request for the October 16 date, which complies with the regulations, but not any
amended date that does not comply with the regulations. There being none, the motion was
approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G.
Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett.
Against: None. Mayor Crewe noted that the original request was approved, but the request with
the amended date was not approved.

RE: PUBLIC HEARING — ETTER REZONING

Mayor Crewe stated the meeting constituted a public hearing (due notice having been given) to
consider the request of Mr. Sandy Etter for the rezoning of property located at 380 and 390
Peppers Ferry Road between 19" Street and Loretto Drive from R-2 Residential to B-1
Business. He noted that in viewing the sign up sheet, he thinks this is the matter that most
individuals attending the meeting have indicated they would like to address the Council
regarding or are interested in this matter. Mayor Crewe explained that the Planning Commission
conducted a public hearing, and, ultimately, recommended that the property be rezoned to B-1
Business with certain conditions. He noted that for informational purposes, for those who do not
have a packet, there is a letter from Ms. Clara Crigger expressing opposition to the proposed
rezoning. Mayor Crewe advised what would normally happen is that after this public hearing is
held and everyone has had a chance to speak and has spoken, this would come up later in the
meeting on the Council’s agenda to be voted on. He noted that in case someone is not
completely familiar with this, the Planning Commission recommended that the rezoning be
granted with two stipulations or conditions which include: (1) Restrict the development to banks,
office buildings, bed and breakfast inns, light retail establishments, pick up laundry and dry
cleaning, and wearing apparel stores; (2) Potential to review the rezoning again in 3-5 years
relative to the lifting of the conditions and the extension of the district further north. Mayor Crewe
summarized that this is the recommendation from the Planning Commission, which will be acted
upon, unless someone has something different, but, normally this would be acted upon by the
Council at this meeting. He advised that having provided this information for those attending the
meeting, he will start to recognize those individuals at the meeting who wish to speak. Mayor
Crewe stated that the Council appreciates everyone attending the meeting, and the Council is
glad the citizens took their time to be present at the meeting to make their views known.

Mr. Bill Frost was recognized and stated his name is William R. Frost. He advised that he lives
at 205 North 19" Street. Mr. Frost indicated that he has a plat of the Woodmere Park
subdivision which was developed in April 1963. He noted the property which Mr. Etter wishes to
be rezoned is on Peppers Ferry Road. Mr. Frost stated the first piece of property has a frame
house with a frontage of 95 feet, and it goes back 150 feet. He noted that for the driveway going
into this parcel of property, unless someone turns around in the yard, they have to back out into
the heavy traffic on Peppers Ferry Road. Mayor Crewe inquired if it would be helpful if Mr. Frost
held the plat so that Council can see the diagram that he has, and noted that Mr. Frost showed
it to him before the meeting, but it could be passed around so Council could see it. Mr. Frost
inquired if he could show the plat to the Council. Mayor Crewe advised that the plat could be
shown to the Council, and noted if Mr. Frost could hold it where the Council could see it, the plat
could be visible by everyone. Mr. Frost noted he will show the Council the plat as soon as he
discusses the second part of it. He explained that the next lot owned by Mr. Etter is only 75 feet
by 115 feet. Mr. Frost pointed out that for this property, in order for a person to get his car off of
Peppers Ferry Road, the driver has to go off of 19" Street to get onto the property. He noted it
only goes back 145 feet. Mr. Frost then presented the plat to the Council for their review.
Councilman Crockett inquired as to where Mr. Frost’s property is located on the map. Mr. Frost
answered that his property is depicted by #5 on the map. Mayor Crewe noted that what he
thinks Mr. Frost is indicating is the property located on the curb against 19" Street has an
entrance off of 19" Street. Mr. Frost stated that is correct. Mayor Crewe explained that the
property next to this one is narrow and is the one that Mr. Frost indicated that drivers have to
back their vehicles out of the driveway onto Peppers Ferry Road. Mr. Frost advised that is
correct. Mayor Crewe inquired if Mr. Frost has any further comments about this request. Mayor
Crewe inquired regarding the zoning line on the map. Assistant Town Manager Moore indicated
that this is the approximate zone if the rezoning took place along the property line. Mayor
Crewe noted this is the back of the property line. Mr. Frost stated the Council can see by the
last plat that the land adjoining Mr. Etter’s property is the Loretto property, and it was zoned for
business, but there is 300 feet there, and this is only over 100 feet on Peppers Ferry Road.
Mayor Crewe inquired if Mr. Frost is referring to the depth. Mr. Frost stated that is correct. He
noted the traffic in this area is congested, and traffic is supposed to stop at his street, but they



do not stop. Mr. Frost stated that part of the vehicles stop and part of them do not stop. Mayor
Crewe inquired if he is referring to 19" Street. Mr. Frost advised that he is referring to Spiller
Street. He noted he did not know why traffic comes to Peppers Ferry Road down Spiller Street,
but it does, and then they go the other way. Mr. Frost indicated that traffic also comes up 19"
Street and goes out Spiller Street to Peppers Ferry Road. He stated the way it is zoned for the
adjoining property, if the Council looks at the plat, it goes all of the way in 300 feet and takes in
Spiller Street. Mr. Frost, noted, therefore, that this would create a dead end at the end of his
property. He stated that when this property was developed, it was developed for residences
only, and the people in this neighborhood whom he has talked to want this property to remain
residential. Mr. Frost indicated that he would request the Council to reject Mr. Etter’'s petition.
Mayor Crewe thanked Mr. Frost for his comments. He noted that Mr. Frost is welcome to keep
his plats.

Mayor Crewe then recognized Ms. Norma Armbrister. Ms. Armbrister noted that she also lives
on 19" Street, but she is back further. She explained that there are a lot of traffic problems in
this area, and if these properties are rezoned for business, it will be bad, and she will not be
able to get out of her dead end street. Ms. Armbrister advised that people come off of Cove
Road, down Spiller Street, and then to Peppers Ferry Road, and they also cut off of Peppers
Ferry Road and go up to Cove Road. She noted the problem when traffic comes off of Cove
Road and comes down Spiller Street is some drivers stop for the stop sign and some of them do
not stop. Mayor Crewe inquired if she is referring to the stop sign at Spiller and 19" Streets. Ms.
Armbrister stated that is correct, and noted if there is a business in the Etter properties,
especially pertaining to the corner lot, which she thinks is zoned 390 Peppers Ferry Road, it is
going to be a bad problem with traffic just to get out on Peppers Ferry Road. She inquired if 390
Peppers Ferry Road is the corner lot. Mayor Crewe stated that is correct. Ms. Armbrister
indicated that all of her neighbors she has spoken with do not want this zoning to be changed
since this area was originally zoned R-2 Residential. She explained that this is why people built
their homes in this neighborhood, and it is why people have built and purchased their homes in
this area. Mayor Crewe thanked Ms. Armbrister for her comments.

Mr. David W. Jones was recognized and stated he has been quite torn by this matter because it
puts him in the middle. He noted if he had known before that business property can place a
building within 10 feet of his property line, it would have made a terrible lot of difference to him.
Mr. Jones indicated that if the reason Mr. Etter has given for rezoning this to business is so he
can sell it as business property, he inquired as to why Mr. Etter cannot sell the property as
residential property and not mess up the entire community. Mr. Jones advised that Mr. Etter
could fix up his homes some and sell them as residential property. He noted he has owned his
home for over 28 years, and noted he built his own house with his own hands on his own time.
Mr. Jones indicated that he got most of the timber off of the farm. He stated that it took him 10
years to get it all together, and noted he is still working on his home. Mr. Jones indicated that
every 10 years, he goes through and redoes his house, including the windows, etc. He advised
that he is in this process, and he will be 70 years old in November, and he is hoping this will be
the last time he has to redo his home. Mr. Jones remarked that he hopes he can live in his
home in peace in a residential community. Mayor Crewe thanked Mr. Jones for his comments.

Mayor Crewe noted if he is reading the sign up sheet correctly, the others who signed up
wanted to speak on a topic other than this public hearing. He inquired if there are others present
who would like to address Council during the public hearing regarding the Etter rezoning
request. There being none, he declared the public hearing closed.

RE: PUBLIC HEARING - CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY

Mayor Crewe stated the meeting also constituted a public hearing (due notice having been
given) to consider the issuance of a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity during
2003 for Blue and White Cabs, Inc. for the operation of taxicabs. He advised that the Council
received in their package a copy of the inspection prepared by the Police Department showing
that the fleet of vehicles has been inspected. Mayor Crewe noted that the Council also has the
certificate of liability insurance, and it is noted that the insurance, as currently issued, expires
next month, October 2003, and, obviously, any action the Council takes, and if the Certificate is
approved, there would have to be an updated certificate of insurance, and the vehicles would
have to continue to be insured.

Mayor Crewe inquired if there are persons present who wish to address the Council during this
public hearing on the request from Blue & White Cabs, Inc. for a Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity to operate taxicabs in the town. There being none, he declared the
public hearing closed.



RE: PUBLIC HEARING - ENTERPRISE ZONE

Mayor Crewe stated the meeting, likewise, constituted a public hearing (due notice having been
given) to consider the application for an Enterprise Zone designation for Progress Park and the
surrounding areas within the corporate limits. He explained that this would be a joint application.
Mayor Crewe indicated that the way this is proposed, the Enterprise Zone would consist of 171
acres. He noted the incentives would be that the threshold to receive these additional incentives
would require a minimum of 20 new jobs and a minimum of $1 million worth of facilities. Mayor
Crewe stated that those industries who meet these thresholds would then have an eligibility for
incentives that would include a 50 percent reduction in the fee for the building permit, fast-
tracking of the building permit process to assure a 30-day turn around after the submittal of
plans, and the waiving of water and sewer connection fees but not the cost of meters and
piping. He indicated that he knows Mr. Mike Webb is attending the meeting and can probably
answer questions. Mayor Crewe stated he is not suggesting that Mr. Webb has to address the
Council, but if he would like to address the Council, they will be glad to hear from him regarding
the Enterprise Zone.

Mr. Mike Webb advised that he is attending the meeting to thank the Council for agreeing to
consider their request and to provide them with an update. He noted that originally, it was 171
acres because when they talked to the Department of Housing and Community Development,
they were open to the idea of having Bland County as a noncontiguous subzone, but they
decided this would not work, so the Department came back to the Joint IDA and stated that they
had to find a way to connect Bland County to the Wytheville zone. He explained that they were
able to connect these two zones by just making a small 50-foot right of way zone going up the
interstate. Mr. Webb indicated that no one can develop this since it is a right of way, and it will in
no way create more liability, but what it would do is increase the acreage from 171 acres to 177
total acres. Mayor Crewe noted that what this change does is still keep Bland County as a
partner and inquired if that is correct. Mr. Webb stated that is correct and what it does is literally
connects this so it is one big contiguous zone. He explained that this means everyone is
connected so no one has a subzone, and in the future, the Town of Wytheville could apply for
another noncontiguous subzone. Mayor Crewe inquired if the application would still include the
Ivanhoe Industrial Park as a subzone, and not a contiguous zone. Mr. Webb advised that the
Ivanhoe Industrial Park is contiguous because they ran the enterprise zone down Ivanhoe Road
by doing the same thing with the 50-foot right of way. Mayor Crewe inquired if this is what the
County acted on. Mr. Webb noted that is correct and advised that Stephen Bear seemed to
have no objection to this. Mayor Crewe inquired if anyone would like to review the map. He
explained that basically what is being done is the enterprise zone was placed in a 50-foot right
of way to make the enterprise zone down to the Bland County line. Councilman Crockett
inquired if there is an enterprise zone in Bland County. Mr. Webb stated there is not a current
enterprise zone in Bland County. He noted it is his understanding that Bland County applied a
few years ago but did not receive the zone. Mr. Webb indicated that at the time, they did not
have a very good incentive package, and noted this is his understanding, but this time, Bland
County is being much more aggressive in the application with Wythe County and the Town of
Woytheville. Councilman Crockett inquired if Bland County could request a zone to be in Bland
County. Mr. Webb advised that Bland County could request a subzone at a future date.
Councilman Crockett noted that a subzone is what he meant that Bland County could apply for.
Mayor Crewe inquired if there are any further questions for Mr. Webb. There being none, he
thanked Mr. Webb for his comments.

Mayor Crewe inquired if there are any persons present who wish to address Council during this
public hearing for the consideration of the enterprise zone designation. He noted that Council
will be taking action on this matter later in the meeting. There being no one else to address the
Council regarding this matter, he declared the public hearing closed.

RE: CITIZENS’ PERIOD

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is Citizens’ Period. He noted that several individuals
have indicated they desire to address the Town Council on something other than what is listed
on the agenda.

Mr. Jen Wu was recognized and stated the reason he is attending the meeting is he is trying to
get a sewer line for his project he is working on. He advised that he spoke with Assistant Town
Manager Steve Moore this morning, and Mr. Moore informed him that this is Council’s decision.
Mr. Wu stated the sewer line he is talking about is the road that connects Nye Road to Lover’s
Lane. Mayor Crewe noted this is the sewer line that goes along the connector road all of the
way back to Mr. Wu’s property. Mr. Wu stated that is correct. Mayor Crewe indicated that it
would go from Nye Road to Mr. Wu’s property. Mr. Wu advised this is correct. Mayor Crewe
stated the Town has not yet named that connector road and inquired if that is correct. Mr. Wu



noted there is no name on the street at this time. He advised he is proposing to build an
apartment building on this property, and he wanted to know how much the Town is willing to
extend the sewer in this area. Mr. Wu stated he is hoping the Town would be able to go halfway
with him on this sewer line. Mayor Crewe noted that he just came in and saw a diagram of this,
and inquired if Mr. Wu has had time to look into this and if he knows of the distance involved.
Mr. Wu stated he has the diagram and he knows the length of it. Mayor Crewe inquired if Mr.
Wu has given Assistant Town Manager Moore copies of the documents he has. Mr. Wu advised
that Mr. Moore should have a copy of everything that he has, and he has given a copy to the
Town. He noted if Assistant Town Manager Moore does not have a copy, he has copies with
him. Mayor Crewe inquired if Mr. Moore received these copies today. Assistant Town Manager
Moore stated that is correct and noted that Town staff has information relative to the request
that Mr. Wu has made. He noted that as he believes the Council is aware, the Town had been
working on a project to complete this roadway and to install water and sewer lines in this
roadway. Mr. Moore remarked that a portion of the sewer has already been installed. He noted
there remains a gap between the two lines, and he is unsure of the reasons why the line was
not completed all of the way through except for the matter of cost. Assistant Town Manager
Moore explained that the more easily installed sewer line was placed in the project. He noted
there is a section of about 900 feet between these two sections that has not been installed.
Mayor Crewe inquired if on the map, the two red lines depict the sewer line that is already in the
ground. Mr. Moore stated that on the map, the two magenta colored lines indicate the line that
has been installed, and the yellow line indicates the sewer line that has not been installed. He
remarked that there is about 900 feet of line that needs to be installed in this section. Mayor
Crewe inquired if 900 feet is depicted by the yellow line, or if it is 900 feet of the yellow line.
Assistant Town Manager Moore explained that 900 feet is the entire yellow line on the map that
would need to be installed to connect the sewer line so it can serve Mr. Wu'’s property, which is
located at the corner at the end of the upper line illustrated on the map. Mr. Wu indicated that
another thing he would like to add is the sewer line would not be needed for approximately one
and one-half years or longer. Mayor Crewe inquired if this is based on Mr. Wu'’s plans of when
he would need the line for his development. Mr. Wu stated that is correct. He pointed out it
would take about this long for the building to be completed so the Town would have time to work
this out. Mayor Crewe inquired if what Mr. Wu is asking the Council to do is to pay all or as
much as the Council is willing to pay toward the cost of the installation of this 900 feet of sewer
line. Mr. Wu stated he is requesting the Town to pay as much as they are willing toward this
sewer line. He noted the Town was planning to install this sewer line in the future sometime.
Assistant Town Manager Moore advised that is correct and noted that it would, ultimately, be a
future line to serve this roadway, but since there was no development on this road, it did not
make much sense to complete the sewer line at this tremendous cost. He noted that Mr. Wu
has brought forth a project for these apartments, and noted it is up to 15 apartments if he
understands correctly. Mr. Wu advised that it may be 15 or possibly 17 apartments. He
remarked that the number of units will depend on if they hit rock or not, and if they do not hit
rock, it has the potential for 17 apartments. Mayor Crewe stated it is almost a sure bet that if a
person digs a hole, he will hit rock somewhere, and noted that anywhere the Town has ever dug
a hole, they hit rock. Mr. Wu noted that if they hit rock, they are going to take out three units.
Mayor Crewe inquired if the main issue with the installation of this sewer line is the cost if they
hit rock or if there is a grade problem or an engineering difficulty. Mr. Moore answered that the
primary difficulty is the depth of the line, and indicated most of these sections are about 14 feet
deep. Mr. Wu stated that another thing he would like to add is the reason it is 14 feet deep is
that when the Town designed this and put the 300 feet of line on the other end, they put it eight
feet deep, and this is more than he needs. He noted he thinks the reason is so the Town could
sell as much as it could. Mayor Crewe explained that he would assume it would be for the
gravity so the Town did not have to construct a pump station and inquired if that is correct.
Assistant Town Manager Moore stated that is correct and noted it is the best end result for the
service in the future. Mayor Crewe noted that Mr. Wu is anticipating needing all of this sewer
line installed in approximately one year to one and one-half years. Mr. Wu noted if the Town is
going to install the sewer line, he can wait two years if he needs to. Mayor Crewe remarked that
the Council can do anything they desire, but what the Council would normally do is refer this to
the Committee meetings and begin the process of evaluating the pros and cons and trying to
make a decision. He stated the Town will keep Mr. Wu informed. Mr. Wu remarked that he
would like to ask another question. He inquired if no matter what the Town decides to do if he is
entitled to the Town installing 300 feet of line if he decides to install the remaining portion of the
sewer line. Mayor Crewe inquired if Mr. Wu is referring to the 300 feet from the existing line. Mr.
Wu noted he is referring to 300 feet of the project. He explained that he asked Assistant Town
Manager Moore this question this morning, and he could not give him an answer. Mr. Wu
pointed out that the Town Attorney can give him an answer. Assistant Town Manager Moore
interjected that he did give Mr. Wu an answer. Mr. Wu inquired if the answer is yes or no that he
is entitled to the 300 feet. Assistant Town Manager Moore advised Mr. Wu that the ordinance
reads that the Council may, at their discretion, extend the line up to 300 feet. He explained that
the Council is not obligated to extend the line 300 feet. Mr. Moore stated there is a section in the



ordinance that addresses 300 feet as a reasonable length that the Council will extend the line.
Mayor Crewe noted the straight answer is that the ordinance permits the Council to extend the
line, but it does not require the Council to extend the sewer line 300 feet. He indicated that he
thinks the proper thing to do would be to refer this matter to the Public Works Committee
because he thinks this is a public works project and it should be on the Public Works Committee
agenda. Mayor Crewe stated there may be some budget issues with this project, and it is
probably also going to go to the Budget and Finance Committee. He explained that the Public
Works Committee consists of Councilmen Weisiger and Crockett, and the Budget and Finance
Committee is comprised of Vice-Mayor King and Councilman Jones. Mayor Crewe reiterated
that he thinks both Committees are going to review this, but he would think it should start with
the Public Works Committee to review the engineering diagrams and to get the facts and figures
together regarding this matter, and if they need something, they can contact Mr. Wu. He noted
the Public Works Committee meets at 7:00 a.m. on Tuesday mornings, and the Budget and
Finance Committee meets at 7:00 a.m. on Thursday mornings. Mayor Crewe advised that the
Committees will not be meeting for the next two weeks because of the fifth week Monday
meeting, and people being out of town this week. He noted his suggestion would be that he
would refer this matter to the Public Works Committee for their review and recommendation to
the Town Council. Mayor Crewe remarked that the Town will try to review this matter as
promptly as possible. He inquired if this would be acceptable to Mr. Wu. Mr. Wu stated he
guesses this is what has to be done, and inquired as to how long it will take before he would
receive an answer. Mayor Crewe noted he would think it would take a month or two before the
Town Council would be able to give him an answer and inquired of Council if they could do
something in the October time frame. He stated the Committee will not be meeting again until
the first Tuesday in October. Councilman Weisiger noted he would think it would be at least the
middle of October before they could give Mr. Wu an answer. Mayor Crewe indicated that he
would think it would probably be sometime in October before a decision can be made. Mr. Wu
noted he is trying to get his project started if he could receive an answer from the Town. Mayor
Crewe stated that the Town will move as rapidly as it can to try to get Mr. Wu an answer. Mr.
Wu thanked the Council for their consideration of his request. Councilman Crockett indicated
that he knows Mr. Wu has not mentioned a water line. He noted he assumes that there is water
at this location. Mr. Wu advised there is a water line to this property. Councilman Crockett noted
that a water connection is not a consideration. Mr. Wu indicated that there is a main water line in
this area. Mayor Crewe indicated that water can flow under pressure and sewer cannot, and this
is the reason there is a deeper sewer line than a water line. He pointed out that he is not an
engineer, but he believes the reason the water line was installed is because it did not have to be
as deep as the sewer line. Mayor Crewe thanked Mr. Wu for his comments and reiterated that
the Council will try to proceed as rapidly as possible.

Mayor Crewe inquired if there are others who wish to address Council during Citizens’ Period.
There being none, he thanked everyone for attending the meeting and proceeded with the
agenda.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

Mayor Crewe noted the reason Town Manager Sutherland is not present at the meeting is
because he is attending the Town Manager’s Association meeting in Charlotte, North Carolina.
Under Old Business, Assistant Town Manager Moore reported the following:

1. This year, again, the Town has received from the Virginia Commission for the Arts an
award of a Local Government Challenge grant in the amount of $5,000. As the Council
knows, the Town uses this money for the Wythe Arts Council to help fund the
Chautauqua Festival. Town staff will be confirming the cash match that was awarded by
the Council. As the Council will recall, in May, they voted to contribute $5,000 from
revenues from the Chautauqua Festival to the Arts Council to attribute that money to the
Chautauqua Festival. He remarked that Town staff will be confirming this and receiving a
check from the Virginia Commission for the Arts in the very near future. Mayor Crewe
stated this is pursuant to the action the Council has already taken and they would not
need to do anything additionally. Assistant Town Manager Moore stated that is correct.

2. Assistant Town Manager Moore noted he would like to congratulate the Town of
Wytheville Wheezers for placing second in the senior male category of the New River
Challenge held this past Saturday, September 20. The participants included Director of
Public Works Dennis Hackler who bicycled for 40 miles from Fries to Foster Falls;
Councilman Weisiger who canoed 12 miles from Foster Falls to Allisonia; Councilman
Jones who ran 7.2 miles from Allisonia to Lone Ash; and Mayor Crewe who ran and
completed the remaining 5.9 miles to Foster Falls. The Wytheville Wheezers improved
their record from last year by 15 minutes, with an overall time of 06:59:12. Mr. Moore
advised that he, the rest of Council, and those attending the meeting are glad to wish the



team the best and to congratulate them on this accomplishment. Mayor Crewe advised
that the other team beat them by 9 minutes. Mayor Crewe noted that one competitor
finished the race in 05:35, and noted this was a sole competitor.

3. The Town has received notice that the public housing assessment system by which
HUD grades their Housing Authorities has indicated that the Wytheville Redevelopment
and Housing Authority had a score of 98 out of 100, and their designated status is high
performer. Everyone is very pleased with this rating. Councilman Crockett noted that he
would add that this was the highest ranking in Virginia, and in the top two percent, as he
understands, nationwide. Mayor Crewe advised that he thinks the Housing Authority has
retained this type of rating for the past six or seven years, if he remembers correctly.
Councilman Crockett advised he believes this is correct. Mayor Crewe noted that the
Housing Authority has been very consistent with their ratings, and the Council
appreciates their efforts.

RE: BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Councilman Jones, reporting for the Budget and Finance Committee, stated that several years
ago, the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development imposed a surcharge of
1 percent on the value of a building permit fee, which was collected and paid to the state. He
explained that the state imposed these fees as a revenue source for the operations within the
Department of Housing and Community Development. Councilman Jones stated the Town has
now been advised by the state that effective October 1, 2003, the fee to be imposed on building
permit fees will increase from 1 percent to 1.75 percent. He explained that these new fees are
established in the Virginia Uniform Statewide Building Code, and it is mandatory that
communities collect these fees and transmit them to the state. Councilman Jones stated,
therefore, it would be the recommendation of the Budget and Finance Committee that the Town
increase the state building permit fees from 1 percent to 1.75 percent effective October 1, 2003.
A motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by Vice-Mayor King to increase the
state building permit fees from 1 percent to 1.75 percent effective October 1, 2003. Mayor
Crewe noted the motion is for the Town to comply with the state law, and noted that the Town
does not have an option but to increase the fee from 1 percent to 1.75 percent. He inquired if
there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the
following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline
K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None.

Councilman Jones also reported that at the last Council meeting, several citizens were present
to inquire about development of the Visitor's Center on North Tazewell Street. He noted that
several questions were posed by these citizens, including the size and configuration of parking
lots for the new facility, the potential for different means of ingress and egress, and the potential
for the visitor’'s facility not to be situated at this location. Councilman Jones indicated that with
regard to the Visitor's Center being relocated, the Committee would note that this project is well
under way, and the Town has an agreement with the United States Forest Service to complete
this facility. He remarked that as the Council knows, work on the expansion of the building is
progressing, and, therefore, in the Committee’s opinion, it is not feasible to consider stopping
the project and relocating the center. Councilman Jones stated that with regard to parking and
other access issues, both the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Works Committee
have been reviewing feasible alternatives. He noted alternatives that have been discussed
include decreasing the size of the parking lot, the potential to relocate driveways, and the
potential to have an entrance road to the Visitor's Center from Fourth Street. Councilman Jones
indicated that, hopefully, by the Council's next meeting, the Committee will be in a better
position to respond to these inquiries. He advised that the Council did want the citizens to know
their concerns were being reviewed by the Council. A copy of the Budget and Finance
Committee report is attached and made part of these minutes.(Attachment).

RE: PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT

Councilman Crockett, reporting for the Public Works Committee, stated that recently the Council
received a request from Reverend Steve Ridenhour with Habitat for Humanity requesting that
fees associated with construction of their latest dwelling on Spring Street be reimbursed. He
advised that the fees that were requested to be reimbursed include $1,660 for water and sewer
connections and $210.08 for the building, mechanical, plumbing, and electrical permits.
Councilman Crockett noted that the two fees combined total $1,870.08. Councilman Crockett
remarked that Habitat has paid these fees, but would seek their reimbursement. He stated that
the Council has assisted Habitat before with other projects and thinks that their efforts are
worthwhile and feels that the reimbursement of these fees is warranted. Councilman Crockett
noted, therefore, it is the recommendation of the Public Works Committee that the Treasurer be
authorized to issue a check in the sum of $1,870.08 to Habitat for Humanity for reimbursement



of expenses associated with the Spring Street housing project. A motion was made by
Councilman Crockett and seconded by Councilman Weisiger that the Treasurer be authorized
to issue a check in the sum of $1,870.08 to Habitat for Humanity for reimbursement of expenses
associated with the Spring Street housing project. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any
discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting
in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W.
Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None.

Councilman Crockett also reported that the Town has received, this past week, information from
both private companies that have submitted proposals to the Virginia Department of
Transportation for the widening of Interstate 81 through Virginia. He stated that at this point, the
Committee has not had the opportunity to review these proposals, but will be doing so in some
detail in order that the Town can provide comments to the Department of Transportation.
Councilman Crockett advised that the Department of Transportation will hold its annual
reallocation hearings in October, at which time the Town can make comments on the need for
local street improvements, and also have the opportunity to comment on the interstate
proposals. He stated the interstate highways are critical to the Town’s economy, and the
Committee thinks it is important to understand both proposals fully and attempt to have the
alternatives selected that will best serve the Town’s citizens and the Town’s business
community. Councilman Crockett stated the Committee would anticipate that they would have
some type of preliminary statement developed by the next meeting of Council. A copy of the
Public Works Committee report is attached and made part of these minutes.(Attachment).

RE: ORDINANCE — ETTER REZONING

Mayor Crewe presented an ordinance amending Ordinance No. 640, generally known as the
Zoning Ordinance, to rezone from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business with Conditions property
owned by Mr. Sandy Etter located at 380 and 390 Peppers Ferry Road, which is located on the
west side of Peppers Ferry Road between 19" Street and Loretto Drive, on first reading. He
explained that the Council has before them the recommendation from the Planning Commission
that the rezoning be approved with the conditions, and the Council has the wording of this in
their package of information. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is a motion that the recommendation
of the Planning Commission be approved, amended, tabled, defeated, etc. Councilman Jones
stated that since he serves on the Planning Commission and voted for the request at that time,
he is still on the same track so he will make a motion to approve the recommendation of the
Planning Commission and approve the ordinance amending Ordinance No. 640, generally
known as the Zoning Ordinance, to rezone from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business with
Conditions property owned by Mr. Sandy Etter located at 380 and 390 Peppers Ferry Road,
which is located on the west side of Peppers Ferry Road between 19" Street and Loretto Drive,
on first reading. Mayor Crewe stated the motion is to approve the recommendation of the
Planning Commission which would be to approve the rezoning with the conditions that he earlier
read including: (1) Restricting the development to banks, office buildings, bed and breakfast
inns, light retail establishments, pick up laundry and dry cleaning, and wearing apparel stores;
(2) Potential to review the rezoning again in 3-5 years relative to the lifting of the conditions and
the extension of the district further north. He inquired if there is a second to the motion. The
motion was seconded by Councilman Weisiger. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion
on the motion. Councilman Crockett stated he has reservations about this rezoning. He noted
he guessed he could look at it two different ways. Councilman Crockett advised that one way to
look at it is the property is on Peppers Ferry Road, and there is B-2 Business zoning adjacent to
that property, and he would think that probably at some point, whether it will be five, ten, fifteen,
or twenty years, very possibly this would be rezoned. He noted where his concern comes is,
obviously, the adjacent property owners who, of course, when they purchased their property, as
Mr. Jones, Mr. Frost, and Ms. Armbrister have indicated, it was with the idea it would be for
residential usage. Councilman Crockett indicated that having stated that, obviously, there are
always conditions that arise that possibly do change zoning. He remarked he thinks the Council
needs to look, at least at this point, to those property owners who own residential property in
this area. Councilman Crockett indicated that he thinks Mr. Frost made some very interesting
comments about the size of the property, and noted he is glad he did because this was one of
the questions he was going to ask was about the depth of the property. He noted he would think
that some type of business would create some type of parking situation. Councilman Crockett
indicated that he knows the Town has regulations dealing with the parking spaces, various
handicapped parking, etc. He stated he is unsure without viewing some type of plan, once this
type of parking requirement is in place, what type of businesses would have enough area to
locate at this site. Councilman Crockett noted this is not necessarily the issue at this meeting,
but it does bother him that a lot of times everyone seems to think in terms that the property
owners who live in residential areas do not necessarily have rights, and, obviously, they do, and
they spoke at this meeting. He stated the other question that bothers him is the potential to
review the rezoning again in three to five years relative to the lifting of the conditions and the



extension of the district further north. Councilman Crockett noted that for the extension of the
district further north, he is unsure if he really understands how far “further north” is. He indicated
that there are, obviously, some restrictions as to how far it could go back, but he thinks it opens
up an area that he is unsure he wants to get involved with as to how far back it would go.
Councilman Crockett stated that also, for the idea of rezoning in three to five years, he would
assume that the property owners would have a right to come back and request that the Town lift
those conditions. He noted it is his understanding also that possibly the Town Council could lift
those conditions without a request from the property owners and inquired if that is correct.
Mayor Crewe stated the Council has the legal authority to initiate a rezoning, which would
involve, he would think, removing those restrictions and conditions. Councilman Crockett noted
that he is not prepared to vote for this request at this time. Vice-Mayor King stated that a lot of
her concerns are the same as Councilman Crockett’s. She noted that in talking with some of the
citizens in this residential neighborhood, they were not aware this rezoning was coming before
the Planning Commission, and, that is why they were not at the Planning Commission meeting
to voice their opinions. Mayor Crewe explained that the requirement is that the notice be sent to
the adjoining property owners so it took awhile for the word to get out in the neighborhood. He
noted the adjoining property owners were notified, but a lot of the residents were not adjoining
property owners to these two tracts of property. Vice-Mayor King noted that this particular
neighborhood has been in existence for a long time. Mayor Crewe noted that the neighborhood
has been in existence since 1963. Vice-Mayor King stated that she, like Councilman Crockett, is
not prepared to vote for this.

Ms. Armbrister noted it was brought to her attention at the Planning Commission meeting when
they were considering the Jones property that there is nothing but senior citizens who live in this
area ranging from age 93 to age 60. She noted she is the youngest senior on the block. Ms.
Armbrister pointed out that there are individuals living in this area who are in their 90’s and their
late 80’s, with the exclusion of the apartments, but the residents are mainly senior citizens.
Mayor Crewe thanked Ms. Armbrister for her comments.

Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any further discussion on the motion. Councilman Weisiger
inquired if since he seconded the motion, if it dictated how he votes on the motion. Mayor Crewe
noted that Councilman Weisiger seconding the motion has no bearing on how he has to vote,
and advised he would defer to the Town’s parliamentarian, but just the fact that Councilman
Weisiger seconded the motion does not mean he has to vote in favor of it. Town Attorney Kaase
advised that by Councilman Weisiger seconding the motion, he could vote however he chooses.
Mayor Crewe noted that Councilman Weisiger could vote against the ordinance if he desired.
Town Attorney Kaase stated that is correct, and noted that Councilman Jones could withdraw
his original motion. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any further discussion on the motion. There
being none, Mayor Crewe stated the motion on the floor is to approve the recommendation from
the Planning Commission which would mean that the rezoning is granted with the conditions.
The motion was defeated with the following voting results:

FOR: John W. Jones, Jr.
AGAINST: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, William B. Weisiger, Charles
G. Crockett

ABSTENTIONS: None

Mayor Crewe explained that he voted nay because he was concerned about the traffic that
could be resulting in this neighborhood. He noted the ordinance was defeated, and the rezoning
is, therefore, denied. Mayor Crewe stated that for those who are interested in this matter, a
petition could be started at anytime to rezone again, but this petition is ended as of this action at
this meeting by the Town Council. He thanked everyone for attending the meeting.

The ordinance was defeated on first and final reading.

RE: RESOLUTION — ENTERPRISE ZONE

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is to consider a resolution authorizing the Town to
apply for an enterprise zone designation. He noted that based on Mr. Webb’s comments, and in
order to make it match with what the County is trying to do with the Town’s joint application with
Bland, Carroll, and Wythe Counties, he does not think, if he is reading it correctly, that it
requires any changes in the actual resolution before the Council. Mayor Crewe indicated that in
the report, the Town had stated 171 acres, and it would now be 177 acres, and this would need
to be changed. He reiterated that the resolution does not state how many acres, but only that
the Council needs to approve it. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by
Councilman Jones to approve the resolution authorizing the Town to apply for an enterprise



zone designation. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. Vice-Mayor
King inquired if the number of acres needs to be included in the resolution. Mayor Crewe stated
the number of acres does not need to be in the resolution at this stage, but the number of acres
does need to be listed in the application, if he understands correctly, but not in the resolution per
se, but it would need to be in the application. He inquired of Mr. Webb if that is correct. Mr.
Webb answered that that the resolution stays in the Department of Housing and Community
Development’s handbook, and this is something they want. Vice-Mayor King noted it is not
necessary for the number of acres to be in the resolution. Mr. Webb stated that is correct. Mayor
Crewe noted the Town Council will go by the rules of the DHCD and provide the information
they need. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any further discussion on the motion. There being
none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:
For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles
G. Crockett. Against: None.

RE: CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is to consider the issuance of a Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity during 2003 for Blue and White Cabs, Incorporated for the
operation of taxicabs. He advised he did not know if Mr. Largen would like to address the
Council, but if he desired to do so, the Council will be glad to hear from him. A motion was made
by Councilman Jones and seconded by Councilman Weisiger to approve the issuance of a
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity during 2003 for Blue and White Cabs,
Incorporated for the operation of taxicabs. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on
the motion. Councilman Crockett stated he would like to ask Mr. Largen several questions.
Mayor Crewe requested Mr. Largen to approach the podium to answer questions and noted the
Council appreciates him attending the meeting. Councilman Crockett stated his question deals
with the fact that Mr. Largen has listed five automobiles that would be, he would assume, used
in Pulaski and Wytheville until such point that Mr. Largen would have taxicabs in Wytheville and
inquired if, at some point, Mr. Largen would add taxicabs to his fleet. Mr. Largen answered that
what he was planning to do would be to start off with one or possibly two cars. He explained that
if the business increased enough that it would require it, he would bring more taxicabs as his
business increased. Mr. Largen stated their goal is to find out the needs of the community, and
then bring in the number of cars it would take to serve this need. Councilman Crockett stated
that at some point he thinks this was mentioned, and the Mayor stated that in October the
certificate of compliance would have to be renewed. Mayor Crewe stated that Mr. Largen would
have to provide another copy of his renewed insurance policy in October because the current
certificate of insurance expires in October. Mr. Largen stated that October is the renewal month
for his insurance, and the Town will receive a renewal certificate. Councilman Crockett inquired
if Mr. Largen may or may not add additional taxicabs to the Wytheville area. Mr. Largen
answered that if it is needed, they will add additional taxicabs to the area. Mayor Crewe inquired
as to what hours of operation Mr. Largen contemplates running the taxicabs to begin with. Mr.
Largen answered that they will probably run their taxicabs from 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 midnight, or
some similar hours. Vice-Mayor King inquired as to where Mr. Largen’s dispatch office will be.
Mr. Largen answered that to begin with, they will have a telephone number in Wytheville that will
ring at their office in Pulaski, but the cab will be stationed in Wytheville, and they will do a
cellular intercom to transfer the call to the driver in Wytheville. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is
any further discussion or questions on the motion. Mayor Crewe thanked Mr. Largen for his
comments and for attending the meeting. There being no further comments or questions the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For:
Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G.
Crockett. Against: None.

Mayor Crewe advised that the Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity is approved. He
advised Mr. Largen that the Council wishes him luck with his business, and he hopes that Mr.
Largen will be operating soon.

RE: REZONING REQUEST — DAVID W. JONES

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is to consider the recommendation from the Planning
Commission regarding the request of Mr. David Jones for the rezoning of property located at
195 North 19" Street which is located on the west side of 19" Street between East Spiller Street
and Peppers Ferry Road from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business with Conditions. He explained
that the Council needs to schedule a public hearing to consider this matter, and the next
available date the Council could hold a public hearing would be October 13. Mayor Crewe noted
that the Council will schedule the public hearing for October 13 unless someone has an
objection. Mr. Jones stated he would like to withdraw his application for the rezoning. Mayor
Crewe inquired if there is a form that needs to be signed so the withdrawal will be in writing so
the Council can act at this meeting and end the matter. Assistant Town Manager Moore



explained that this rezoning was initiated by the Planning Commission, so it will not be
necessary for Mr. Jones to put this in writing. Mayor Crewe inquired if what Mr. Jones is stating
is he does not want to proceed with any rezoning request and to keep the current zoning for his
property. Mr. Jones stated that is correct. Mayor Crewe noted that this withdrawal will be
granted, and it will be part of the Town Council minutes that Mr. Jones is withdrawing his
rezoning request. He explained that since Mr. Jones is withdrawing his request, there is no need
for a public hearing. Mayor Crewe thanked Mr. Jones for attending the meeting.

RE: SEWER INCEPTOR PROJECT

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the adoption of various forms required by Rural
Development for the Sewer Interceptor Project which include the Resolution of Governing Body
and the Code of Conduct. He explained that there is a resolution that sets forth that the Town
will adopt and abide by the covenants, agreements, documents, and forms, and authorizes the
Town Manager to execute the various documents as required. Mayor Crewe noted that the
second form is a Code of Conduct that states that no Town officer, employee, or agent will do
anything that is unethical or illegal, etc. Mayor Crewe indicated that these are fairly standard
forms. A motion was made by Councilman Weisiger and seconded by Vice-Mayor King to adopt
the Resolution of Governing Body and the Code of Conduct forms required by Rural
Development for the Sewer Interceptor Project and that Town Manager Sutherland be
authorized to execute the various required documents. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any
discussion on the motion. Councilman Crockett inquired if there is a cost involved to the Town in
all of this, and, if so, the amount of the cost. Mayor Crewe stated there is no cost in these forms,
and inquired if Councilman Crockett is referring to the cost of the project. Councilman Crockett
stated that is correct. Mayor Crewe stated he does not have the figures in front of him, but if he
recalls, there was a monetary match. Assistant Town Manager Moore explained that this is the
Sewer Interceptor Loan project which is approximately $822,000. Mayor Crewe pointed out that
the $822,000 is the amount of the loan. Assistant Town Manager Moore stated that is correct.
Town Attorney Kaase inquired if this project is along Industry Road. Mr. Moore advised that is
correct. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any further discussion, questions, or comments. There
being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no
opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B.
Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None.

RE: ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Crewe thanked the citizens for attending the meeting. He stated that, hopefully, the
citizens are pleased by the actions of Council, and they appreciate the citizens attending the
meeting to make their views known to the Council. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any further
business to be discussed. There being none, a motion was duly made, seconded, and carried to
adjourn the meeting (8:00 p.m.).

Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Mayor

Sharon P. Hackler, CMC, Clerk of Council

G:\COUNCIL\Minutes\2003\Council Minutes 092203.doc



BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

OCTOBER 13, 2003

As the Council is aware, in the near future, we will be awarding a contract for the
excavation of the site where the new Community Center will be constructed. Also,
Town forces are working on the renovations and expansion of the Visitor's Center on
North Tazewell Street. Both of these projects had been anticipated during the
budget development process, and it was determined that when, and if, we
proceeded with these projects that we would amend the budget to appropriate
funds. Under state law, any budget amendment that totals one percent of the budget
or increases the budget by $500,000 or more requires a public hearing and an
action by the Council. Given that both of these projects will proceed, it will be
necessary for the Council to consider budget amendments for the appropriation of
funds. We would mention, also, that we recently have received donations from the
Wal-Mart Foundation to the Police Department. As such, it would be the
recommendation of the Budget and Finance Committee that a public hearing be set
at the next meeting of Council to receive comments on the proposed appropriation

of funds and budget amendments for these three line items.

The Recreation Department has received a request for the hours of operation of the
Community Center to be extended until 1:00 a.m. on New Year's Eve to
accommodate a function in the gym. As the Council knows, our current policy sets

the ending hour of operation at the Community Center as midnight. The policy also



provides that the hours can be extended with the approval of the Council. This
matter was discussed at the Recreation Commission meeting, and they have
recommended that the hours of operation for New Year’s Eve be extended to 1:00
a.m. provided that a Recreation staff member would be available for supervising the
function and that an off-duty police officer be present until the function ends. Our
Committee discussed this request and would recommend that we accept the

recommendation of the Recreation Commission.

Jacqueline K. King

John W. Jones, Jr.

H:\COUNCIL\BFCOMMIT.RPT\2003\BFOCT13.doc





